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You Broadband India Limited  
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 

B alan ce Sh eet as at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

P arti cu lars No tes
 As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2  

 As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1  

Assets

No n - cu rren t assets

Property, plant and equipment (including RoU Assets) 6 21,447 23,930 

Capital work-in-progress 6 503 696 

Intangible assets 7 25 28 

Financial assets

Other non-current financial assets 8 309 314 

Other non-current assets 9 202 103 

To tal n o n - cu rren t assets ( A) 2 2 ,4 8 6 2 5 ,0 7 1 

Cu rren t assets

Financial assets

Trade receivables 10 71 155 

Cash and cash equivalents 11 986 1,697 

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 12 235 257 

Other current financial assets 13 7 8 

Other current assets 14 817 776 

To tal cu rren t assets ( B ) 2 ,1 1 6 2 ,8 9 3 

To tal Assets ( A+ B ) 2 4 ,6 0 2 2 7 ,9 6 4 

Eq u i ty an d Li abi li ti es

Eq u i ty

Equity share capital 15 7,500 7,500 

Other equity 16 (10,215) (7,292) 

To tal eq u i ty ( C) ( 2 ,7 1 5 ) 2 0 8 

Li abi li ti es

No n - cu rren t li abi li ti es

Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities 33 574 756 

Trade payables 17

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises
- - 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises
- 23 

Other non-current liabilities 18 60 112 

To tal n o n - cu rren t li abi li ti es ( D ) 6 3 4 8 9 1 

Cu rren t li abi li ti es

Financial liabilities

Short term borrowings 19 8,906 9,325 

Lease liabilities 33 880 771 

Trade payables 17

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 53 11 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 3,331 3,442 

Other current financial liabilities 20 2,662 3,435 

Other current liabilities 21 10,847 9,857 

Short term provisions 22 4 24 

To tal cu rren t li abi li ti es ( E)  2 6 ,6 8 3 2 6 ,8 6 5 

To tal Eq u i ty an d Li abi li ti es ( C+ D + E) 2 4 ,6 0 2 2 7 ,9 6 4 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

F o r  S.R. B atli bo i  & Asso ci ates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004

Ni lan gsh u  Katr i ar J agbi r  Si n gh EVS Ch akrav arth y

Partner Director Managing Director & CEO

Membership No.: 58814 (DIN:03258009) (DIN:00603085)

Tr i di b Gh o sh  D asti der Vi n eet Ch o rar i a

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(ACS:25887)

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date :  May 7, 2022 Date :  May 7, 2022

F o r  an d o n  beh alf  o f  th e B o ard o f  D i recto rs o f  

Y o u  B ro adban d In di a  Li mi ted

sd/- sd/- sd/-

sd/- sd/-



    You Broadband India Limited  
   Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

  (All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 

Statemen t o f  P ro f i t an d Lo ss  f o r  th e year  en ded March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

P arti cu lars No tes
F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

In co me

Service revenue (including amount referred in note 43) 15,446 18,137 

Other operating income 23 175 238 

Rev en u e f ro m o perati o n s 1 5 ,6 2 1 1 8 ,3 7 5 

Interest income 59 115 

To tal i n co me 1 5 ,6 8 0 1 8 ,4 9 0 

Expen ses

Employee benefit expenses 24 1,684 1,990 

Network expenses and IT outsourcing cost 25 6,947 6,941 

License fees 1,239 36 

Subscriber acquisition and servicing expenditure 26 1,784 2,122 

Advertisement and business promotion expenditure 48 57 

Other expenses 27 785 1,014 

1 2 ,4 8 7 1 2 ,1 6 0 

P ro f i t/( Lo ss)  bef o re f i n an ce co sts, depreci ati o n , 

amo rti sati o n , excepti o n al i tems an d tax

3 ,1 9 3 6 ,3 3 0 

Finance costs 28 1,366 856 

Depreciation 6 4,762 5,215 

Amortisation 7 2 2 

P ro f i t/( Lo ss)  bef o re excepti o n al i tems an d tax ( 2 ,9 3 7 ) 2 5 7 

Exceptional items 29 - 304 

P ro f i t/( Lo ss)  bef o re tax ( 2 ,9 3 7 ) ( 4 7 ) 

Tax expen se:

 - Current tax 40 - 23 

 - Deferred tax 40 & 41 - 5 

P ro f i t/( Lo ss)  af ter  tax ( 2 ,9 3 7 ) ( 7 5 ) 

Oth er  co mpreh en si v e i n co me/( lo ss)

Items n o t to  be reclassi f i ed to  pro f i t o r  lo ss i n  

su bseq u en t per i o ds:

Re-measurement gains/(losses) of defined benefit plans 38 14 (19) 

Income tax effect 40 & 41 - 5 

Oth er  co mpreh en si v e i n co me/( lo ss)  f o r  th e year , n et o f  tax 1 4 ( 1 4 ) 

To tal co mpreh en si v e i n co me/( lo ss)  f o r  th e year ( 2 ,9 2 3 ) ( 8 9 ) 

Earn i n g/( Lo ss)  per  eq u i ty sh are o f   Rs. 1 0  each : 42

Basic (Rs.) ( 3 .9 2 ) ( 0 .1 0 ) 

Diluted (Rs.) ( 3 .9 2 ) ( 0 .1 0 ) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

F o r  S.R. B atli bo i  & Asso ci ates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004

Ni lan gsh u  Katr i ar J agbi r  Si n gh EVS Ch akrav arth y

Partner Director Managing Director & CEO

Membership No.: 58814 (DIN:03258009) (DIN:00603085)

Tr i di b Gh o sh  D asti der Vi n eet Ch o rar i a

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(ACS:25887)

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date :  May 7, 2022 Date :  May 7, 2022

F o r  an d o n  beh alf  o f  th e B o ard o f  D i recto rs o f  

Y o u  B ro adban d In di a  Li mi ted
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sd/- sd/-



You Broadband India Limited  
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 

Statemen t o f  Ch an ges i n  Eq u i ty f o r  th e year  en ded March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

A. Eq u i ty sh are capi tal:

Eq u i ty sh ares o f   Rs.1 0  each  i ssu ed, su bscr i bed an d f u lly pai d

Nu mbers Amo u n t

As at Apr i l 1 , 2 0 2 0 7 5 ,0 0 4 ,9 6 0 7 ,5 0 0 

 Issued during the year - - 

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1 7 5 ,0 0 4 ,9 6 0 7 ,5 0 0 

 Issued during the year - - 

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 7 5 ,0 0 4 ,9 6 0 7 ,5 0 0 

B . Oth er  eq u i ty

Capi tal reserv e
Secu ri ti es 

premi u m

Retai n ed 

earn i n gs

As at Apr i l 1 , 2 0 2 0 2 6 8 3 ,7 2 7 ( 1 1 ,1 9 8 ) ( 7 ,2 0 3 ) 

Profit/(Loss) for the year ended March 31, 2021 - - (75) (75) 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ended March 31, 2021 - - (14) (14) 

To tal co mpreh en si v e i n co me/( lo ss) - - ( 8 9 ) 

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1 2 6 8 3 ,7 2 7 ( 1 1 ,2 8 7 ) ( 7 ,2 9 2 ) 

Profit/(Loss) for the year ended March 31, 2022 - - (2,937) (2,937) 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ended March 31, 2022 - - 14 14 

To tal co mpreh en si v e i n co me/( lo ss) - - ( 2 ,9 2 3 ) 

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 2 6 8 3 ,7 2 7 ( 1 4 ,2 1 0 ) ( 1 0 ,2 1 5 ) 

As per our report of even date

F o r  S.R. B atli bo i  & Asso ci ates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004

Ni lan gsh u  Katr i ar J agbi r  Si n gh EVS Ch akrav arth y

Partner Director Managing Director & CEO

Membership No.: 58814 (DIN:03258009) (DIN:00603085)

Tr i di b Gh o sh  D asti der Vi n eet Ch o rar i a

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(ACS:25887)

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date :  May 7, 2022 Date :  May 7, 2022

P arti cu lars To tal

F o r  an d o n  beh alf  o f  th e B o ard o f  D i recto rs o f  

Y o u  B ro adban d In di a  Li mi ted

Reserv es an d su rplu s
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    You Broadband India Limited  
   Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

  (All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 

Statemen t o f  Cash  F lo ws f o r  th e year  en ded March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

P arti cu lars
F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Operati n g acti v i ti es

P ro f i t/( Lo ss)  bef o re tax (2,937) (47) 

Adj u stmen ts to  reco n ci le pro f i t/( lo ss)  bef o re tax to  n et cash  f lo ws:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (including RoU Assets) 4,762 5,215 

Amortisation of intangible assets 2 2 

Share-based payment expense (ESOS) - 4 

Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) (180) 96 

Finance costs (including Fair value change in Financial instruments) 1,366 856 

Allowance for doubtful debts / advances (25) (68) 

Bad debts / advances written off 44 101 

Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back (164) (226) 

Write off of Property, Plant and Equipment - 289 

Interest income (59) (115) 

Wo rki n g capi tal adj u stmen ts

Decrease in trade receivables 75 158 

(Increase)/Decrease in other financial and non-financial assets (47) 352 

(Decrease) in trade payables (102) (520) 

Increase/(Decrease) in other financial and non-financial liabilities 24 (136) 

Cash  f lo ws f ro m o perati n g acti v i ti es 2,759 5,961 

Income tax refund/(paid) (including TDS) (net) (98) 603 

Net cash  f lo ws f ro m o perati n g acti v i ti es 2 ,6 6 1 6 ,5 6 4 

In v esti n g acti v i ti es

(2,155) (3,062) 

207 7 

22 - 

Interest received 60 43 

Net cash  f lo ws ( u sed i n )  i n v esti n g acti v i ti es ( 1 ,8 6 6 ) ( 3 ,0 1 2 ) 

F i n an ci n g acti v i ti es

Payment of interest and finance charges (342) (1) 

Payment of lease liabilities (745) (768) 

Proceeds from short term borrowings 8,906 9,400 

Repayment of short term borrowings (9,325) (11,103) 

Net cash  f lo ws ( u sed i n )  f i n an ci n g acti v i ti es ( 1 ,5 0 6 ) ( 2 ,4 7 2 ) 

Net ( decrease) / i n crease i n  cash  an d cash  eq u i v alen ts ( 7 1 1 ) 1 ,0 8 0 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,697 617 

Cash  an d cash  eq u i v alen ts at th e en d o f  th e year  ( ref er  n o te 1 1 ) 9 8 6 1 ,6 9 7 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including CWIP and 

intangible assets under development)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Maturity for Fixed deposits with banks having maturity of 3 to 12 months



You Broadband India Limited  
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 

1 . D i sclo su re o f  ch an ges i n  li abi li ti es ar i si n g f ro m f i n an ci n g acti v i ti es o n  acco u n t o f  n o n - cash  tran sacti o n s

P arti cu lars Sh o rt term bo rro wi n gs
In terest accru ed bu t 

n o t du e
Lease li abi li ti es

B alan ce as at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 0 1 1 ,0 2 8 - 1 ,6 1 4 

(i) Cash flow Items

Net proceed / (repayment) of borrowings (1,703) - - 

Payment of Interest and finance charges  - (1) - 

Payment of lease liabilities - - (768) 

(ii) Non - cash items

Finance cost accrued (charged to profit and loss) - 11 141 

Additions - - 664 

Disposals - - (124) 

B alan ce as at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1 9 ,3 2 5 1 0 1 ,5 2 7 

(i) Cash flow Items

Net proceed / (repayment) of borrowings (419) - 

Payment of Interest and finance charges  - (342) - 

Payment of lease liabilities - - (745) 

(ii) Non - cash items

Finance cost accrued (charged to profit and loss) - 359 131 

Additions - - 575 

Disposals - - (34) 

B alan ce as at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 8 ,9 0 6 2 7 1 ,4 5 4 

2. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

F o r  S.R. B atli bo i  & Asso ci ates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004

Ni lan gsh u  Katr i ar J agbi r  Si n gh EVS Ch akrav arth y

Partner Director Managing Director & CEO

Membership No.: 58814 (DIN:03258009) (DIN:00603085)

Tr i di b Gh o sh  D asti der Vi n eet Ch o rar i a

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(ACS:25887)

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date :  May 7, 2022 Date :  May 7, 2022

F o r  an d o n  beh alf  o f  th e B o ard o f  D i recto rs o f  

Y o u  B ro adban d In di a  Li mi ted

sd/- sd/- sd/-

sd/- sd/-



You Broadband India Limited  
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 

  Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Corporate Information 

You Broadband India Limited (herein referred to as “YBIL” or “the Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Vodafone Idea Limited 

was incorporated on November 13, 2000 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 applicable in India. The registered 

office of the Company is situated at plot no. 54, Marol Co-operative Industrial Estate, Makwana, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400059, 

India. 

The Company is engaged in providing high speed broadband internet access through cable network, high bandwidth internet 

broadband services to enterprise segment, infrastructure support to licensed telecommunication service providers. 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 

May 7, 2022.      

2. Statement of compliance 

The financial statements of the Company comprising of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in 

Equity and Statement of Cash Flows together with the notes have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 

(Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 

and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter. 

3. Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the 

consideration given in exchange for goods and services on the transaction date. The Board of Directors are confident of the 

Company’s ability to meet its obligations as and when they arise in the next twelve months from the balance sheet date. 

Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

All financial information presented in Rs. has been rounded off to lakhs unless otherwise stated. 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued notifications dated March 24, 2021 to amend Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 

to enhance the disclosures required to be made by the Company in its financial statements. These amendments were applicable 

to the Company for the financial year starting April 01, 2021. The Company has given effect of such regroupings in financial 

statements including figures for the corresponding previous year wherein: 

Lease liabilities have been disclosed separately as “Lease Liabilities” in the financial statements from “Other non-current financial 

liabilities” and “Other current financial liabilities” in the audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021. 

The Company has elected to present Profit/(Loss) before finance costs, depreciation, amortisation,  exceptional items and tax as 

a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. In its measurement, the Company does not include finance 

costs, depreciation, amortisation, exceptional items and tax. 

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ 

and division II of schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.  

4. Significant Accounting Policies 

a) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods or receive services and thus has the ability to direct the use 

and obtain the benefits from the goods or services. Revenue is measured at the Transaction price i.e. an amount that reflects the 

consideration, to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to customers, excluding 

amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Taxes and duties collected by the seller / service provider are to be deposited with 

the government and not received by the Company on their own account. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue. The Company 

evaluates its exposure to significant risks and reward associated with the revenue arrangements in order to determine its position 

of a principal or an agent in this regard. Consideration payable to a customer includes cash or credit or other items expected to 

be payable to the customer (or to other parties that purchase the entity’s goods or services from the customer). The Company 

accounts for consideration payable to a customer as a reduction from the transaction price unless the payment to the customer 

is in exchange for a distinct good or service that the customer transfers to the entity. 



You Broadband India Limited  
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

i. Revenue from supply of services and sale of goods

Fixed line data revenue 

Revenue on account of fixed line data services (net of discount, rebates, waivers and indirect taxes) is recognised on time 

proportion basis in accordance with related contracts. Installation charges are recognised as revenue on completion of 

installation. 

Electronic devices and network equipment revenue 

Revenue from sale of goods (excluding indirect taxes) is recognized on transfer of all significant risk and rewards of ownership to 

the buyer. 

Rental Income on optic fibre cable 

Rental revenue on optic fibre cable are recognised on a monthly basis as per the contractual terms under agreements entered 

with customers. 

Multiple element contracts: 

Bundle packages that include multiple elements, at the inception of the arrangement, the Company determines whether it is 

necessary to separate the separately identifiable elements and apply the corresponding revenue recognition policy to each 

elements. Total package revenue is allocated among the identified elements based on their relative standalone price. 

ii. Unbilled Income

Unbilled income represents the value of services rendered but not yet been invoiced on the reporting date due to contractual

terms.

iii. Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is

required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section 4 o) financial

instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

iv. Advance from customer and Deferred revenue

Advance from customer and deferred revenue is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company

has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services

to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made. Advance from customer and deferred revenue are 

recognised as revenue when the Company fulfils its performance obligations under the contract.

v. Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 

the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is recorded using the applicable Effective Interest Rate (EIR),

which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s 

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

b) Leases 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right 

to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.  

Company as a lessee  

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of 

low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right 

to use the underlying assets. The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for immovable properties. 

i) Right-of-use assets 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is 

available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and 

adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities 

recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives

received. 



You Broadband India Limited  
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a 

purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to 

impairment (Refer note 4 k) 

ii) Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease

payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable and 

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase

option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term

reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are

recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 

commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, 

the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In 

addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification i.e. a change in the lease term or a change 

in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. The re-measurement is of 

lease liability is done by discounting the revised lease payments using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the effective 

date of modification. 

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term 

of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value

assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases

of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

c) Employee benefits 

i. Defined Contribution Plan 

Contributions to Provident and Pension funds are funded with the appropriate authorities and charged to the Statement of Profit 

and Loss when the employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.  

The Company has no obligation other than contribution payable to these funds. 

ii. Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund 

with the Life Insurance Corporation of India.  The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using 

the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at periodic intervals. 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 

interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding charge or 

credit to Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to 

Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods. 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the 

following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss: 

• Service costs; and

• Net interest expense or income



You Broadband India Limited  
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

ii. Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of salaries, wages and other short term employee benefits 

in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that 

service. 

Provision for leave benefits to employees is based on actuarial valuation done by projected accrued benefit method at the 

reporting date. The related re-measurements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. 

iii. Share- based payments

Stock option of Vodafone Group Plc (VGPLc) granted to the employees of the Company are accounted as cash-settled share

based payments by the Company. 

The fair value of the cash settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the 

Company’s estimate of stock option that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in liability. At the end of each 

reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the 

revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expense 

reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the cash-settled employee benefits liability. 

In respect of cancellation of unvested stock options, the amount already charged as share based payment expense is reversed 

under the same head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

d) Annual revenue share license fees 

The variable license fees, computed basis of adjusted gross revenue, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period 

in which the related revenue arises as per the license agreement of the licensed service area at prescribed rate. 

e) Foreign currency transactions 

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which is also the Company’s functional currency. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the Rs. spot rate on the date the transaction first qualifies for 

recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates 

of exchange on the reporting date. 

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised on net basis within finance cost in 

the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recognised using the exchange rates 

at the dates of the initial transactions. 

f) Exceptional items 

Items of income or expense which are non-recurring or outside of the ordinary course of business and are of such size, nature or 

incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance of the Company are disclosed as 

Exceptional items in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

g) Taxes 

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax. 

i. Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. 

Current tax is based on the taxable income and calculated using the applicable tax rates and tax laws. The tax rates and tax laws 

used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.  

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss in correlation to the underlying 

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
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ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 

statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are generally 

recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which 

those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting date and reduced to the extent it is no longer 

probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or that entire deferred tax asset to be utilised. 

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at the end of each reporting date and are recognised to the extent it has become 

probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or 

the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.  

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss in correlation to the underlying 

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.  

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 

current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation statute. 

h) Current / Non – Current Classification 

An asset is classified as current when 

a) It is expected to be realized or consumed in the respective Company’s normal operating cycle;

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

c) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

d) If it is cash or cash equivalent, unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.

Any asset not conforming to the above is classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when 

a) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle of the respective companies;

b) It is held primarily for the purposes of trading;

c) It is expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

d) The respective companies have no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.

Any liability not conforming to the above is classified as non-current. 

i) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Capital work in progress (CWIP) held for use in the rendering of services and supply of 

goods, or for administrative purposes, are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

losses, if any. Cost includes all direct costs relating to acquisition and installation of Property, Plant and Equipment, non-

refundable duties and borrowing cost relating to qualifying assets. CWIP represents cost of property, plant and equipment not 

ready for intended use as on the reporting date. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at 

intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Subsequent costs are included in the 

assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs 

are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.  
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Depreciation commences once such assets are available for use in the intended condition and location. Depreciation is provided 

using straight-line method on pro rata basis over their estimated useful economic lives as given below. The useful life is taken as 

prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except where the estimated useful economic life has been assessed to be 

lower. 

1Other plant and machinery include Hybrid Fibre Cable equipment, CAT 5 cables, modems, customer premise equipments, tools 

and equipments. 

When any significant part of property, plant and equipment is discarded or replaced, the carrying value of discarded / replaced 

part is derecognized. Any gains or losses arising from retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as 

the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss on the date of retirement or disposal.  

j) Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost includes all direct costs relating to 

acquisition of Intangible assets and borrowing cost relating to qualifying assets.  Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at 

cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. There are no intangible assets assessed with 

indefinite useful life.  

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period, residual value and the 

amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each year. Changes in the 

expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered 

to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The 

amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such 

expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.  

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line method as under: 

• Cost of licenses is amortised on straight line method from the date when the related network is ready for intended use over 

the unexpired period of the license.

• Software, which is not an integral part of hardware, is treated as an intangible asset and is amortised over its useful economic 

life as estimated by the management to be 3 years. 

Cost of Intangible assets under development represents cost of intangible assets not ready for intended use as on the reporting 

date. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 

derecognised. 

P arti cu lars  Esti mated u sefu l li fe (i n  years)

Leasehold improvements Period of lease or 10 years whichever is lower

Plant and machinery

Dark and Optic Fibre 15 years

Computer hardware 3 years

Other plant and equipment
1

3 - 9 years

Office Equipments 5 years

Furniture and Fixtures 5 years

RoU Assets

-Bandwidth (IRU) Over the period of lease

-Others 3 to 5

Motor Vehicles 4 years
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k) Impairment of Non – Financial Assets 

Tangible (including RoU assets) and Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 

the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the 

recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which 

the asset belongs. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 

future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 

the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, an appropriate valuation 

model is used. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, an 

impairment loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss by reducing the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating 

unit) to its recoverable amount.  

Impairment losses recognized in the earlier periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indication that the loss has 

decreased or no longer exists. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) recoverable 

amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in estimates used to determine the 

assets’ recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the 

carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that 

the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had such impairment loss 

not been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. Any reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 

immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

l) Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing 

costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred 

m) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise of cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 

maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement 

of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 

overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management. 

n) Financial Instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial Instruments (assets and liabilities) are recognised when the Company becomes a party to a contract that gives rise to a 

financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 

acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, other than those designated as fair value through profit or loss 

(FVTPL), are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 

recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are 

recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

i. Financial assets 

All regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchase 

or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation 

or convention in the marketplace.  
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Subsequent measurement 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on 

the classification of the financial assets: 

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

c) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) – The Company does not have any 

assets classified as FVTOCI.

I. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 

• Contractual terms of the instruments give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate 

(EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received 

that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt 

instrument or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.  

The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables, loans, etc.  

II. Financial assets measured at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets in the nature of debt instruments. Financial assets included within the FVTPL 

category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category also includes 

derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 

relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily 

derecognised when:  

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received

cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘passthrough’ arrangement; and either

- the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

- the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control

of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 

impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:  

• Debt instruments measured at amortised cost e.g., loans and bank deposits

• Trade receivables

• Other Financial assets not designated as FVTPL 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been 

a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used 

to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, 

credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, 

then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.  
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ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the 

cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected 

credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a 

portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables. The application of 

simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance 

based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

ii. Financial liabilities 

Subsequent measurement  

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method or at FVTPL. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as 

through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 

and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss.  

Financial liabilities at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities are classified as FVTPL when the financial liabilities are held for trading or are designated as FVTPL on initial 

recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near 

term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company  that are not designated as 

hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held 

for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are 

recognised in the profit or loss.  

De-recognition 

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. In case, an existing 

financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 

are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the 

recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

iii. Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, to manage its 

foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively. These derivative instruments are not designated as cash flow, fair value 

or net investment hedges and are entered into for period consistent with currency and interest exposures. Such derivative 

financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are 

subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the 

fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair 

value of derivatives are taken directly to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

iv. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently 

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets 

and settle the liabilities simultaneously.  
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o) Fair value measurement 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 

asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to 

measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair 

value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 

or indirectly observable

 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether 

transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is 

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) (a) on the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the 

transfer or (b) at the end of each reporting period or (c) at the beginning of each reporting period. 

p) Earnings per share 

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s Earnings per share (EPS) is the net profit after tax.  

EPS is disclosed on basic and diluted basis. Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit / loss for the period attributable to the 

shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. The diluted EPS is 

calculated on the same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of potential dilutive equity shares unless the effect of the 

potential dilutive equity shares is anti-dilutive. 

q) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss.  

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 

appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 

recognised as a finance cost.  

Contingent Liabilities 

A Contingent Liability is disclosed where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, 

require an outflow of resources. Contingent Assets are not recognised.  

r) Business Combinations 

Business Combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combination’. Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for 

using the acquisition method unless the transaction is between entities under common control. Business Combinations arising 

from transfer of interests in entities that are under common control, are accounted using pooling of interest method wherein, 

assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying value. No adjustment is made to reflect fair values, or 

recognize any new assets or liabilities other than those required to harmonise accounting policies. The identity of the reserves is 

preserved and appears in the financial statements of the transferee in the same form in which they appeared in the financial 

statements of the transferor. 
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Recent pronouncements  

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as below:  

i) Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual Framework 

The amendments specifiy that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets 

acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial

Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect

the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

ii) Ind AS 16 – Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received 

from selling items produced while the Company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such

sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its

recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements. 

iii) Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that

relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials)

or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the 

Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

iv) Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) 

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to

derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial

statements.

v) Ind AS 106 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) 

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any

potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described

in that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

5. Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments 

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect 

the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures including the disclosure of 

contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require an adjustment 

to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities in future periods. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in 

the periods in which the results are known / materialise. 

The Company has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. 

Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or 

circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they 

occur. 

A. Estimates and Assumptions 

i. Taxes 

The Company provide for tax considering the applicable tax regulations and based on reasonable estimates. Management 

periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns giving due considerations to tax laws and establishes provisions in the 

event if required as a result of differing interpretation or due to retrospective amendments, if any. 

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based on availability of sufficient taxable profits in the Company against which such 

assets can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be 

recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further 

details about taxes refer note 40 and 41. 
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ii. Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits) 

The Company’s obligation on account of gratuity and compensated absences is determined based on actuarial valuations. An 

actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include 

the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, attrition rate and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved 

in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.  

All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter subject to frequent changes is the discount rate. In 

determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies 

consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables in India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in 

response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates. 

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 38. 

iii. Allowance for Trade receivable

The Company follows a ‘simplified approach’ (i.e. based on lifetime ECL) for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade 

receivables. For the purpose of measuring lifetime ECL allowance for trade receivables, the Company estimates irrecoverable 

amounts based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical experience. Further, a large number of minor receivables 

are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when 

management deems them not to be collectible. Refer Note10. 

iv. Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets 

The useful life to depreciate property, plant and equipment is based on technical obsolescence, nature of assets, estimated usage 

of the assets, operating conditions of the asset, and manufacturers’ warranties, maintenance and support period, etc. The charge 

for the depreciation and amortisation is derived after considering the expected residual value at end of the useful life. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed 

by the management at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Further details about property, plant 

and equipment are given in Note 6. 

v. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

Evaluations of uncertain provisions and contingent liabilities and assets requires judgement and assumptions regarding the 

probability of realization and the timing and amount, or range of amounts, that may ultimately be incurred. Such estimates may 

vary from the ultimate outcome as a result of differing interpretations of laws and facts. Refer Note 32 for further details about 

Contingent liabilities. 

vi. Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate 

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate 

(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, 

and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic 

environment. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is 

required to make certain specific estimates such as Company’s credit rating. 

vii. Leases-Estimate of lease period 

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to 

extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected 

lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate 

the contract will be exercised. 
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No te 6

P ro perty, P lan t an d Eq u i pmen t ( i n clu di n g Ro U Assets)

P arti cu lars
Leaseh o ld 

i mpro v emen t

P lan t an d 

mach i n ery

F u rn i tu re 

an d f i xtu res

Of f i ce 

eq u i pmen ts
Veh i cles

Ro U Assets

( Lan d an d 

B u i ldi n g)

To tal

Co st

As at Apr i l 1 , 2 0 2 0 7 4 1 ,8 3 5          2 0 2 1 5 1 8 2 ,3 9 0 4 4 ,4 8 5          

Additions - 2,730 2 - - 664 3,396 

Disposals/Adjustments - (1,366) - (1) - (575) (1,942) 

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1 7 4 3 ,1 9 9          2 2 2 1 4 1 8 2 ,4 7 9 4 5 ,9 3 9          

Additions - 1,763 - 2 - 575 2,340 

Disposals/Adjustments - (31) (2) (31) - (684) (748) 

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 7 4 4 ,9 3 1          2 0 1 8 5 1 8 2 ,3 7 0 4 7 ,5 3 1          

Accu mu lated D epreci ati o n

As at Apr i l 1 , 2 0 2 0 7 1 7 ,2 6 7          1 6 1 5 1 1 4 7 6 6 1 8 ,2 2 1          

Depreciation charge for the year - 4,433 1 29 2 750 5,215 

Disposals/Adjustments - (975) - (1) - (451) (1,427) 

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1 7 2 0 ,7 2 5          1 7 1 7 9 1 6 1 ,0 6 5 2 2 ,0 0 9          

Depreciation charge for the year - 4,058 1 18 1 684 4,762 

Disposals/Adjustments - (14) (2) (30) - (641) (687) 

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 7 2 4 ,7 6 9          1 6 1 6 7 1 7 1 ,1 0 8 2 6 ,0 8 4          
- 

Net B o o k Valu e

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 - 2 0 ,1 6 2 4 1 8 1 1 ,2 6 2 2 1 ,4 4 7          

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1 - 2 2 ,4 7 4 5 3 5 2 1 ,4 1 4 2 3 ,9 3 0          

Less th an  1  year 1 - 2  years 2 - 3  yearsMo re th an  3  years To tal

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

Projects in progress 390 113 -              - 503          

To tal 3 9 0 1 1 3 -        - 5 0 3     

As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Projects in progress 575 121 -              - 696          

To tal 5 7 5 1 2 1 -        - 6 9 6     

Note - Project in Progress are reviewed by the management on regular basis and deployed as per business requirement.

Th e f o llo wi n g i s agei n g sch edu le o f  Capi tal wo rk- i n - pro gress :

P arti cu lars
Amo u n t i n  CWIP  f o r  a  per i o d o f



You Broadband India Limited  
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

No te 7

In tan gi ble assets

P arti cu lars Li cen se f ees
Co mpu ter  -  

So f tware
To tal

Co st

As at Apr i l 1 , 2 0 2 0 30 11 41 

Additions -   3 3 

Disposals/Adjustments -                                      -   -   

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1 30 14 44 

Additions -                                      -   - 

Disposals/Adjustments -   (1) (1)

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 30 13 43 

Accu mu lated Amo rti sati o n

As at Apr i l 1 , 2 0 2 0 3 11 14 

Amortisation charge for the year 2  -* 2 

Disposals/Adjustments -                                      -   -   

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1 5 11 16 

Amortisation charge for the year 2  -* 2 

Disposals/Adjustments -    -* -   

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 7 11 18 

Net B o o k Valu e

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 2 3 2 2 5 

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1 2 5 3 2 8 

The remaining amortisation period of  license fees as at March 31, 2022 is 16 years (March 31, 2021: 

17 years) based on the telecom service license validity period.

*Numbers are below one lakh under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and

accordingly not reported

No te 8

Oth er  n o n - cu rren t f i n an ci al assets

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Deposits with body corporate and others

- Considered good 123 127 

- Considered doubtful 26 26 

Deposits and balances with government authorities 126 127 

Margin money deposits 60 60 

3 3 5 3 4 0 

Allowance for doubtful advances (refer note 35) (26) (26) 

To tal 3 0 9 3 1 4 
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No te 9

Oth er  n o n - cu rren t assets

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Capital advances

- Considered doubtful 22                                                22                                                        

Prepaid expenses -                                              1                                                           

Advance income tax (net) 184                                             86                                                        

Others (consisting mainly  deposit against demands which are appealed 

against / subjudice)

- Considered good 18                                                16                                                        

- Considered doubtful 11                                                13                                                        

2 3 5                            1 3 8                                 

Allowance for doubtful advances (refer note 35) (33)                                              (35)                                                      

To tal 2 0 2                            1 0 3                                 

No te 1 0

Trade recei v ables ( Un secu red, u n less o th erwi se stated)  ( i n clu di n g amo u n t ref erred to  i n  n o te 4 3 )

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Trace Receivable - Considered good 279                                             397                                                    

Allowance for doubtful debts (refer note 35) (208)                                           (243)                                                  

                                7 1                                     1 5 4  

Unbilled Receivables - Considered good -                                              1                                                           

To tal 7 1                               1 5 5                                 

Trade receivable are secured for amounts receivable from certain parties who have provided security deposits of 

Rs. 20 Lakhs (March 31, 2021 :  Rs. 12 Lakhs).

Th e f o llo wi n g i s agei n g sch edu le o f  trade recei v ables :

Less th an  

6  mo n th s

6  mo n th s -  1  

year

1 - 2  

years

2 - 3  

years

Mo re th an  3  

years
To tal

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

Trade Recei v ables -  B i lled

Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good                        69                                21           24           47                            118 279           

6 9             2 1                  2 4    4 7    1 1 8               2 7 9      

Less : Allo wan ce f o r  do u btf u l trade recei v ables -  B i lled ( 2 0 8 )    

7 1        

Trade recei v ables -  Un bi lled -       

To tal 7 1        

As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Trade Recei v ables -  B i lled

Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good                    152                                32           53           80                               80 397           

1 5 2          3 2                  5 3    8 0    8 0                  3 9 7      

Less : Allo wan ce f o r  do u btf u l trade recei v ables -  B i lled ( 2 4 3 )    

1 5 4      

Trade recei v ables -  Un bi lled 1           

To tal 1 5 5      

P arti cu lars
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No te 1 1

Cash  an d cash  eq u i v alen ts

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Cash on hand 5 9 

Cheques on hand 24 40 

Balances with banks

- In current accounts 32 753 

- In deposit accounts (having maturity less than 3 months) 925 895 

To tal 9 8 6 1 ,6 9 7 

No te 1 2

B an k balan ce o th er  th an  cash  an d cash  eq u i v alen ts

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Margin money 212 212 

Bank deposits with maturity from 3-12 months 23 45 

To tal 2 3 5 2 5 7 

No te 1 3

Oth er  cu rren t f i n an ci al assets

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Interest receivable 7 8 

To tal 7 8 

No te 1 4

Oth er  cu rren t assets

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

GST recoverable 502 546 

Prepaid expenses 303 211 

Others

- Considered good 12 19 

- Considered doubtful 31 19 

8 4 8 7 9 5 

Allowance for doubtful advances (refer note 35) (31) (19) 

To tal 8 1 7 7 7 6 
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No te 1 5

Eq u i ty sh are capi tal

P arti cu lars

Nu mbers Amo u n t Nu mbers Amo u n t

EQUITY  SHARE CAP ITAL

Authorised share capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 751,010,000                               75,101 751,010,000                               75,101 

      7 5 1 ,0 1 0 ,0 0 0                    7 5 ,1 0 1        7 5 1 ,0 1 0 ,0 0 0                    7 5 ,1 0 1  

Issu ed, su bscr i bed an d pai d- u p sh are capi tal

Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 75,004,960                                   7,500 75,004,960                                   7,500 

7 5 ,0 0 4 ,9 6 0 7 ,5 0 0 7 5 ,0 0 4 ,9 6 0 7 ,5 0 0

( a)  Reco n ci li ati o n  o f  n u mber o f  sh ares o u tstan di n g

P arti cu lars

Nu mbers Amo u n t Nu mbers Amo u n t

Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year                    75,004,960                                   7,500                    75,004,960                                   7,500 

Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year                    75,004,960                                   7,500                    75,004,960                                   7,500 

( b)  Terms/ r i gh ts attach ed to  i ssu ed, su bscr i bed an d pai d u p eq u i ty sh ares

( c)  D etai ls o f  sh areh o lders  h o ldi n g mo re th an  5 % sh ares i n  th e Co mpan y

Nu mbers 
% h o ldi n g i n  th e 

class
Nu mbers 

% h o ldi n g i n  th e 

class

Eq u i ty sh ares o f  Rs.1 0  each  f u lly pai d

Vodafone Idea Limited, the holding company and its nominees 

*

                   75,004,960 100%                    75,004,960 100%

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after

distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will  be in proportion  to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Name o f  th e sh areh o lders

No te 1 6

Oth er  Eq u i ty

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

( i )  Capi tal reserv e
1

Opening balance 268                                             268                                                    

Addition during the year -                                              -                                                      

Clo si n g balan ce ( A) 2 6 8                            2 6 8                                 

( i i )  Retai n ed earn i n gs

Opening balance (11,287)                                   (11,198)                                          

Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year (2,937)                                      (75)                                                      

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 14                                                (14)                                                      

Clo si n g balan ce ( B ) ( 1 4 ,2 1 0 )                    ( 1 1 ,2 8 7 )                         

( i i i )  Secu ri ti es P remi u m

Opening balance 3,727                                        3,727                                                

Addition during the year -                                              -                                                      

Clo si n g balan ce ( C) 3 ,7 2 7                         3 ,7 2 7                              

To tal( A+ B + C) ( 1 0 ,2 1 5 )                    ( 7 ,2 9 2 )                            

1
 Capital reserve represents reserve created for issue of share based option to employees.
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No te 1 7

( A) Th e f o llo wi n g i s agei n g sch edu le o f  trade payables :

No t du e
Less th an  1  

year

1 - 2

years

2 - 3

years

Mo re th an  3  

years
To tal

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

(i) MSME 29 23 1 -                                     -   53 

(ii) Others 361 881 306 103 223 1,874 

3 9 0        9 0 4 3 0 7        1 0 3        2 2 3 1 ,9 2 7        

Accru ed expen ses 1 ,4 5 7        

To tal 3 ,3 8 4        

Non-Current - 

Current 3,384 

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

(i) MSME 6 5 -                         -   -   11 

(ii) Others 284 745 80 104 172 1,385 

2 9 0        7 5 0 8 0 1 0 4        1 7 2 1 ,3 9 6        

Accru ed expen ses 2 ,0 8 0        

To tal 3 ,4 7 6        

Non-Current 23 

Current 3,453 

P arti cu lars

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

a) (i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of accounting 

year included in trade payables 45 7 

(ii) The interest due on above -* -*

Th e to tal o f  ( i )  & ( i i ) 4 5 7 

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Act - - 

c) The amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during 

the accounting year 362 35 

d) The amounts of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of financial year 8 4 

e) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 

(which have been paid but beyond the due date during the year) but without adding the 

interest specified under this Act. 4 1 

*Numbers are below one lakh under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reported

( B ) INF ORMATION AS P ER THE REQUIREMENT OF  SECTION 2 2  OF  THE MICRO, SMALL AND  MED IUM ENTERP RISES

D EVELOP MENT ACT, 2 0 0 6

No te 1 8

Oth er n o n - cu rren t li abi li ti es

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Advance from customers and deferred revenue 60 112

To tal 6 0 1 1 2
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No te 1 9

Sh o rt term bo rro wi n gs

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Un secu red Lo an s

Loan from related parties (refer note 43)
1

8,906 9,325 

To tal 8 ,9 0 6 9 ,3 2 5 
1

 The loan is repayable on demand with 4.01% interest rate (March 31, 2021 : 7%)

No te 2 0

Oth er  cu rren t f i n an ci al li abi li ti es

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Payable for capital expenditure 653 1,232 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (refer note 43) 27 10 

Security deposits from customers and others 1,982 2,193 

To tal 2 ,6 6 2 3 ,4 3 5 

No te 2 1

Oth er  cu rren t li abi li ti es

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Advance from customers and deferred revenue 
(1)

3,528 4,559 

Taxes, regulatory and statutory liabilities (includes provision with 

respect to subjudice matter related to licensing dispute) 7,319 5,298 

To tal 1 0 ,8 4 7 9 ,8 5 7 

No te 2 2

Sh o rt term pro v i si o n s

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Gratuity (refer note 38) 4 24 

To tal 4 2 4 

(1)
Revenue recognised during the year from deferred revenue and advance from customers (contract liability) at the

beginning of the year  is Rs. 4,559 lakhs  (March 31, 2021: Rs. 4,776 lakhs).

No te 2 3

Oth er o perati n g i n co me

P arti cu lars
 Fo r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2  

 Fo r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1  

Liabilities no longer required written back 164 226 

Miscellaneous receipts 11 12 

To tal 1 7 5 2 3 8 
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No te 2 4

Emplo yee ben ef i t expen ses

P arti cu lars
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2  

 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1  

Salaries, wages and bonus 1,528 1,829 

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 38) 107 115 

Share based payment expenses (ESOS) (refer note 37) - 4 

Staff welfare 48 42 

Recruitment and training 1 - 

To tal 1 ,6 8 4 1 ,9 9 0 

No te 2 5

Netwo rk expen ses an d IT o u tso u rci n g co st

P arti cu lars
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2  

 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1  

Security service charges 1,855 1,954 

Power and fuel 266 290 

Repairs and maintenance - plant and machinery 1,141 585 

Lease line and connectivity charges (including amount 

referred in note 43)
3,265 3,506 

Network insurance 84 64 

Other network operating expenses 321 514 

IT outsourcing cost 15 28 

To tal 6 ,9 4 7 6 ,9 4 1 

No te 2 6

Su bscr i ber  acq u i si ti o n  an d serv i ci n g expen di tu re

P arti cu lars
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2  

 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1  

Collection, telecalling and servicing expenses 224 272 

Sales support cost, commission and others 1,184 1,439 

Customer retention and customer loyalty expenses 376 411 

To tal 1 ,7 8 4 2 ,1 2 2 
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Note 30 

During the previous year, on September 15, 2020, the Company had filed a Scheme of Amalgamation under sections 230 to 232 

and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for the merger of YOU System Integration Private Limited (YSIPL), a 

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, with the Company with an appointed date of April 1, 2020. During the previous year, the 

requisite approvals were received and the merger became effective on March 15, 2021 on filing the certified copies of the orders 

sanctioning the scheme with the Registrar of Companies (RoC). This transaction has been accounted as per Ind AS 103 using the 

pooling of interest method and maintaining the identity of the reserves as those appeared in the standalone financial statements 

of YSIPL. 

No te 2 7

Oth er  expen ses

P arti cu lars
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2  

 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1  

Repairs and maintenance

Building 24 42 

Others 71 64 

Other insurance 89 52 

Rates and taxes 19 20 

Electricity 87 76 

Printing and stationery 15 7 

Communication expenses 16 46 

Travelling and conveyance 90 74 

Allowances for doubtful debts and advances (refer note 35) (25) (68) 

Bad debts / advances written off 44 101 

Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) (180) 96 

Bank charges 7 9 

Directors Sitting Fees (refer note 43) 3 4 

Legal and professional charges 66 51 

Audit fees (refer note 39) 14 14 

Outsourcing cost 182 208 

Support service charges (refer note 43) 203 129 

Miscellaneous expenses 60 89 

To tal 7 8 5 1 ,0 1 4 

No te 2 8

F i n an ce co sts

P arti cu lars
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2  

 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1  

Interest expense on borrowings (refer note 43) 359 11 

Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 33) 131 141 

Interest on AGR liability 720 579 

Interest on others (including amount referred in note 17) 145 130 

To tal i n terest expen se 1 ,3 5 5 8 6 1 

Exchange difference (net) 11 (5) 

To tal 1 ,3 6 6 8 5 6 

No te 2 9

Excepti o n al i tems

P arti cu lars
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2  

 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1  

Redundancy cost paid to employees - 15 

Write off of Property, Plant & Equipment - 289 

To tal - 3 0 4 
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Note 31 

Capital and other Commitments 

Estimated amount of commitments are as follows: 

Contracts remaining to be executed for capital expenditure (net of advances) and not provided for are Rs.162 lakhs (March 31, 

2021: Rs.81 lakhs) 

Note 32 

Contingent liabilities 

Sales Tax / Value Added Tax 

During the previous years, the Company had received demands for incorrect CST rate levied on interstate sales/Scrap Sale. The 

Company has paid Rs. 0.2 lakhs in April 2021 to discharge CST Gujarat liability and for remaining Rs. 0.3 lakhs of CST Karnataka 

liability Company has challenged this demand and yet to receive the final order from the department. 

Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgments/ decisions from such forums/ 

authorities. Further, based on the Company’s evaluation, it believes that it is not probable that the claim will materialise and 

therefore, no provision has been recognized for the above. 

Note 33 

Leases 

Company as a lessee 

P a rti cu la rs
A s a t 

M a rch  31,  2022

A s a t 

M a rch  31,  2021

S ales  Tax /V alue A dded Tax -* -*

*Numbers  are below one lakh under the rounding off convention adopted by the C ompany and

accordingly not reported.

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at March  3 1 , 

2 0 2 1

Open i n g balan ce 1 ,5 2 7 1 ,6 1 4 

Additions 575 664 

Accretion of interest 131 141 

Payments (745) (768) 

Disposals (34) (124) 

Clo si n g balan ce 1 ,4 5 4 1 ,5 2 7 

Current 880 771 

Non-current 574 756 

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in note 45.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under lease liabilities) and the movements

during the year:
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Note 35 

Movement of Allowances for Doubtful debts/advances 

Note 36 

Segment Information 

As the Company operates in only one business segment, hence there is no separate reportable segment as per Ind AS – 108 on 

“Operating segment”.

Note 37 

Share based payments 

Employee stock option plan – options granted by Vodafone Group Plc 

Global Long Term Retention (“GLTR”): 

GLTR plan is a restricted share plan granted as a retention tool to selected employees in the middle management. The options 

vest in 2 years /3 years after the grant date provided the employees remain in the continued employment of the Company during 

the vesting period. 

As at year ended March 31, 2022, details and movements of the outstanding options are as follows: 

The exercise price is Nil and hence the weighted average exercise price is not disclosed. Since the outstanding options as at March 

31, 2022 are Nil the liability at the end of year ended March 31, 2022 is Nil (March 31, 2021 is NIL) 

Fair value of option is measured by deducting the present value of expected dividend cash flows over the life of the awards from 

the share price as at the grant date.  

No te 3 4

D etai ls o f  f o rei gn  cu rren cy expo su res

No t h edged by a  der i v ati v e i n stru men t o r  o th erwi se

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Trade payables an d Oth er  f i n an ci al li abi li ty

In USD 1 9 

In GBP -* -*

Equivalent Rs. of Trade payables and Other current financial liability 

in foreign currency
1

114 665 

1
Amount in Rs. represents conversion at closing rate

*Numbers are below one lakh under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not

reported.

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1, 20 22

As at 

March  3 1, 20 21

Opening Balance 323 391 

Charged to Statement of Profit and Loss (Net) (refer note 27) (25) (68) 

Clo si ng B alance 2 9 8 3 2 3 

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Opti o n s gran ted u n der  GLTR No . o f  Opti o n s No . o f  Opti o n s

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 16,712 

Options granted during the year - - 

Options forfeited during the year - - 

Options cancelled during the year - - 

Options exercised during the year 16,712 

Options outstanding at the end of the year - - 

Options exercisable at the end of the year - - 

- - 

P arti cu lars

Weighted average remaining contractual life of the options 
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Note 38 

Employee benefits 

A. Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity)

General description and benefits of the plan 

The Company operate a defined benefit final salary gratuity plan through a trust. The gratuity benefits payable to the employees 

are based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. The benefit is payable on termination of service 

or retirement, whichever is earlier. The employees do not contribute towards this plan and the full cost of providing these benefits 

are borne by the Company. 

Regulatory framework, funding arrangement and governance of the Plan 

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (Gratuity Act). The trustees of the gratuity fund have a fiduciary 

responsibility to act according to the provisions of the trust deed and rules. Since the fund is income tax approved, the Company 

and the trustees have to ensure that they are at all times fully compliant with the relevant provisions of the income tax act and 

rules. The Company is bound to pay the statutory minimum gratuity as prescribed under Gratuity Act. There are no minimum 

funding requirements for a gratuity plan in India. The Company’s philosophy is to fund the benefits based on its own liquidity and 

tax position as well as level of underfunding of the plan vis-a-vis settlements. The trustees of the trust are responsible for the 

overall governance of the plan. The trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management of the fund to insurance 

Companies which in turn manage these funds as per the mandate provided to them by the trustees and applicable insurance and 

other regulations. 

Inherent risks 

The plan is of a final salary defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks 

pertaining to the plan. In particular, there is a risk for the Company that any significant change in salary growth or demographic 

experience or inadequate returns on underlying plan assets can result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to 

employees in future. 

The following tables summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the 

funded status and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for gratuity: 

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Amo u n t  reco gn i sed i n  B alan ce Sh eet

Present value of obligations as at the end of the year 246 246 

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 242 222 

Net Funded Obligation 4 24 

Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in Balance Sheet (4) (24)

Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in Balance Sheet is bifurcated as

- Short term provision (4) (24)
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P arti cu lars
F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Reco n ci li ati o n  o f  n et def i n ed ben ef i t o bli gati o n

Opening net defined benefit liability/(asset) 24 6 

Expense charged to statement of profit & loss 23 23 

Income credited to OCI (14) 19 

Employer contributions (29) (24)

Closing Net Defined Benefit liability/(asset) 4  2 4  

Reco n ci li ati o n  o f  D ef i n ed B en ef i t Obli gati o n

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 246 210 

Current Service cost 22 24 

Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation 15 13 

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from change in financial assumptions (5) 1 

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from change in demographic

assumptions
(7)

9 

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising on account of experience changes (2) 7 

Benefits paid (23) (18) 

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 2 4 6 2 4 6 

Reco n ci li ati o n  o f  plan  assets

Opening fair value of plan assets 222 204 

Employer contributions 29 24 

Interest on plan assets 14 14 

Re measurements due to

- Actual return on plan assets less expected interest on plan assets -   (2) 

Benefits paid (23) (18) 

Closing fair value of plan assets 2 4 2 2 2 2 

P arti cu lars
F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Expen ses Reco gn i sed i n  th e Statemen t o f  P ro f i t & Lo ss

Current Service cost 22 24 

Interest on Net Defined Benefit liability/(asset) 1 (1) 

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 2 3 2 3 

Amo u n t  reco rded as Oth er  Co mpreh en si v e In co me ( OCI)

Re measurement  during the year due to

-  Changes in financial assumptions (5) 1 

-  Changes in demographic assumptions (7) 9 

-  Experience adjustments (2) 7 

-  Return  on plan  assets (excluding amounts included in net 

interest expense) - 2 

Amount recognised in OCI (gains) / loss ( 1 4 ) 1 9 

Amo u n ts reco gn i sed i n  th e statemen ts o f  pro f i t an d lo ss i n  respect o f  th ese def i n ed ben ef i t plan s are as 

f o llo ws:
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Projected plan cash flow: 

The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on 

past service of the employees as at the valuation date. 

Th e pr i n ci pal assu mpti o n s u sed i n  determi n i n g gratu i ty o bli gati o n s are sh o wn  belo w:

P arti cu lars F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Discount rate 6.85% 6.65%

Future salary increases
1 5.00% 5.00%

Attrition rate 25 years & below - 4%

26 - 35 years - 21% 

36 - 45 years - 17% 

46 - 55 years - 9% 

56 years & above - 0% 

30 years & below - 20%

31-40 years - 15% 

41-50 years - 5% 

51 years & above - 5% 

Mortality rate during employment As per Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality (2012-14) Table

As per Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality (2006-08) Ult 

Table

Disability

1
The estimates of future salary increase considered takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 

factors.

Leaving service due to disability is included in the 

provision made for all causes of leaving service.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions on the defined benefit obligation is as below:

D i sco u n t Rate Salary escalati o n  Rate D i sco u n t Rate Salary escalati o n  Rate

Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -3.03% 2.57% -2.95% 2.56%

Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 3.25% -2.36% 3.14% -2.44%

F o r th e year  en ded March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key 

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

P arti cu lars

Fo r  th e year  en ded March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

P arti cu lars
F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

F o r th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Within the next 12 months 21 23 

Disaggregation details of plan assets (% allocation):

P arti cu lars
F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

F o r th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Insurer Managed Funds
1

100% 100%
1

The funds are managed by Insurers and they do not provide breakup of plan assets by investment type.

P arti cu lars
F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

F o r th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Expected benefits for year 1 47 41 

Expected benefits for year 2 31 32 

Expected benefits for year 3 26 28 

Expected benefits for year 4 23 25 

Expected benefits for year 5 and above 301 273 

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 8.42 years (March 31, 2021:

7.75 years).

B . D ef i ned co ntr i bu ti o n plans:

During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss:

P arti cu lars
Fo r th e year  ended 

March 31, 2022

Fo r th e year  ended 

March 31, 2021

Employers' contribution to provident and other fund 84 92 



You Broadband India Limited  
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 39 

Auditor's Remuneration 

Note 40 

Income Tax Expenses 

Note 41 

Movement in Deferred Tax 

P arti cu lars
Fo r th e year  ended 

March 31, 2022

Fo r th e year  ended 

March 31, 2021

Statutory Audit Fees 14 14 

To tal Remu nerati o n 14 14 

( a) Maj o r  co mpo n en ts o f  tax expen se

P arti cu lars F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

F o r th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Cu rren t Tax

Current Tax on profits for the year -                                                              -   

Adjustments for tax of prior periods -   23 

To tal Cu rren t Tax Expen se ( A) -    2 3  

D ef erred Tax

Relating to addition & reversal of temporary differences -   5 

To tal D ef erred Tax Expen se ( B ) -    5  

To tal Tax Expen se ( A+ B ) -   28 

In co me tax ef f ect o f  re- measu remen t ( gai n s) /lo sses 

o n  def i n ed ben ef i t plan s taken  to  to  o th er  

co mpreh en si v e i n co me / ( lo ss)

-   (5)

( b) Reco n ci li ati o n  o f  av erage ef f ecti v e tax rate an d appli cable tax rate

P arti cu lars F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Loss before income tax expense (2,937) (47)

Appli cable Tax Rate 25.17% 25.17%

Increase / reduction in taxes on account of:

Effect of items for which no deferred tax is recognised (25.13)% (41.20)%

Effects of expenses / income that are not deductible / 

considered in determining the taxable profits (0.04)% 5.81%

Other Items 0.00% (47.24)%

Ef f ecti v e Tax Rate 0.00% (57.46)%

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the

deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, 

in view of uncertainty the Company has not recognized deferred tax assets in respect of carried forward tax losses /

capital losses / temporary differences of Rs. 33,168 lakhs as of March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021:  Rs. 30,098 lakhs).

P ro f i t an d 

Lo ss
OCI

Oth er  

eq u i ty

P ro f i t an d 

Lo ss
OCI

Oth er  

eq u i ty

Assets

Expense allowable on payment basis - (5) 5 -                                  -   -                                  -   -                                  -   

To tal - ( 5 ) 5  -                       -    -                       -    -                       -    

Net def erred tax li abi li ti es/ 

( assets)
-   5 (5) -                                  -   -                                  -   -                                  -   

As per  F i n an ci als :

D ef erred Tax Asset -                       -    -    

D ef erred Tax Li abi li ti es -                       -    -    

As at 

March  3 1 , 

2 0 2 2

P arti cu lars

As at 

March  

3 1 , 2 0 2 0

Reco gn i sed i n As at 

March  3 1 , 

2 0 2 1

Reco gn i sed i n
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Note 43 

Related party transactions 

The Company has transactions with the below related parties: 

No te 4 2

B asi c & D i lu ted Earn i n gs/( Lo ss)  per  Sh are

P arti cu lars
F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

F o r th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Nominal value of equity shares  (Rs.) 10/- 10/-

Profit/(Loss) after Tax (2,937) (75)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders (2,937) (75)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 

the year
75,004,960 75,004,960

Basic and Diluted (Loss) Per Share (Rs.) (3.92) (0.10)

Relati o n sh i p Related P arty

Holding  Company Vodafone Idea Limited 

Subsidiary
You System Integration Private Limited (merged with You Brodband India 

Limited with effect from March 15, 2021)

Vodafone Idea Shared Services Limited

Vodafone Idea Communication Systems Limited

Mr. EVS Chakravarthy (Appointed as Managing Director & CEO on July 14, 2020) 

Mr. Tridib Ghosh Dastider (Appointed as CFO on April 28, 2020) *

Mr. Krishnan Ramachandran (Appointed as Independent Director on February 

17, 2021) 

Mr. Jagbir Singh (Appointed as Non-Executive Director on January 19, 2022)*

Mr. Suraj Kalra (Resigned as Non-Executive Director on March 26, 2022)*

Ms. Shobha Prasad (Resigned as Independent Directoron December 01, 2021)

* No transactions during the year

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Fellow Subsidiaries

A. Tran sacti o n s wi th  related parti es f o r  th e year  en ded March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2  an d March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

 P arti cu lars  Ho ldi n g Co mpan y  F ello w Su bsi di ary  KMP  

347 -                                                               -   

(421) -                                                               -   

1,784 203 -   

(1,657) (129) -   

                                                          -   358 -   

                                                          -   (11) -   

75 -                                                               -   

(72) -                                                               -   

-   8,906 -   

                                                          -   (9,400) -   

                                                          -   9,325 -   

(11,028) (75) -   

                                                          -   -                                                               -   

(27) -                                                               -   

-                                                                  -   3 

-                                                                  -   (4)

-                                                                  -   182 

-                                                                  -   (180)

(Figures in bracket are for the year ended March 31, 2021)

Director’s sitting fees paid

Sale of Service

Interest expense on borrowings

Purchase of service

Expense incurred on company's behalf by

Loan taken

Remuneration

Loan repaid

Sale of Intangible Asset
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Note 44 

Financial Instruments 

B . B alan ces wi th  Related P arti es

 P arti cu lars  Ho ldi n g Co mpan y  F ello w Su bsi di ary  KMP  

741 58 -   

(467) (53) -   

                                                          -   27 -   

                                                          -   (10) -   

201 -                                                               -   

(160) -                                                               -   

-   8,906 -   

                                                          -   (9,325) -   

                                                          -   -   22 

-                                                                  -   (24)

(Figures in bracket are as on March 31, 2021)

Remuneration payable

 Interest payable 

 Prepaid expenses 

 Outstanding loan payable 

 Trade and Other payables 

C. Co mpen sati o n  o f  Key Man agemen t P erso n n el o f  th e Co mpan y

P arti cu lars
 Fo r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2  

 Fo r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1  

Short-term employee benefits 160 169 

Post-employment benefits
1

22 11 
1

represents contribution to provident funds. As Gratuity expense is based on actuarial valuations, the same cannot be computed for

individual employees and hence not included.

D . Th e si gn i f i can t related party tran sacti o n s are su mmari sed belo w :

P arti cu lars
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2  

 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1  

P u rch ase o f  Serv i ce

Vodafone Idea Shared Services Limited 203 -   

In terest expen se o n  bo rro wi n gs

Vodafone Idea Communication Systems Limited 358 11 

Lo an  taken

Vodafone Idea Communication Systems Limited 8,906 9,400 

Lo an  repai d

Vodafone Idea Communication Systems Limited 9,325 -   

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

F i n an ci al assets

Trade receivables 71 155 

Cash and cash equivalents 986 1,697 

Margin money deposits 
(1)

272 272 

Bank deposits with maturity from 3-12 months 23 45 

Deposit with Body corporates, Government 

authorities and others 249 254 

Interest receivable 7 8 

To tal F i n an ci al assets 1 ,6 0 8 2 ,4 3 1 

P arti cu lars
Amo rti sed Co st
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(b) Fair value hierarchy 

i. The carrying amounts of the following financial assets and financial liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

Accordingly, the fair values of such financial assets and financial liabilities have not been disclosed separately.

a) Financial Assets 

 Trade receivables

 Cash and cash equivalents

 Bank balance other than cash & cash equivalents

 Margin money deposits

 Deposit with Body corporates, Government authorities and others

 Interest receivable

b) Financial Liabilities 

 Short term borrowings including Interest accrued but not due

 Trade payables

 Payable for capital expenditure

 Security deposits from customers and others

 Lease liabilities

Valuation Technique used to determine fair value: 

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts with various counterparties. The fair value of 

such derivatives instruments are determined using forward exchange rates. 

Note 45 

Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The Company’s principal financial 

assets comprise cash and bank balance, trade and other receivables. The Company also enters into derivative transactions such 

as foreign forward exchange contracts as a part of Company’s financial risk management policies. 

The Company is exposed to various financial risks such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Directors of the Company 

oversees management of these risks and assure that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the 

Company’s policies and risk objectives. 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. 

Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings.  

a) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market interest rates. The Company has no exposure to the risk of changes in market interest as the Company has borrowed from

its fellow subsidiary Vodafone Idea Communication Systems Limited at 4.01% rate interest which is not exposed to the risk of 

changes in market interest.

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2 As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

F i n an ci al li abi li ti es

Borrowings including Interest accrued but not 

due 8,933 9,335 

Trade payables 3,384 3,476 

Payables for capital expenditure 653 1,232 

Security deposits from customers and others 1,982 2,193 

Lease liabilities 
(2)

1,454 1,527 

To tal F i n an ci al li abi li ti es 1 6 ,4 0 6 1 7 ,7 6 3 
(1)

 included in other current / non-current financial assets
(2)

 included in other current / non-current financial liabilities

P arti cu lars
 Amo rti sed Co st 
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b) Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign

exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s 

operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The Company’s foreign currency risks are identified, measured and managed at periodic intervals in accordance with the 

Company’s policies. 

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of hedging any foreign currency exposure, the Company negotiates the terms 

of those derivatives to match the terms of the hedged exposure. The Company has major foreign currency risk in USD. 

At March 31, 2022, Nil (March 31, 2021: Nil) of its foreign currency trade payables are hedged.  

Foreign currency sensitivity 

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates, with all other variables 

held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit / (loss) before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and 

liabilities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives. 

c) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The 

Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, and 

other financial instrument.

- Trade receivable 

Customer credit risk is managed in accordance with the Company’s established policy, procedures and controls relating to

customer credit risk management. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 0 to 30 days’ credit terms.

Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

- Other financial assets and cash deposits 

The Company maintains its Cash and cash equivalents with banks and financial institutions having good reputation, good past

record and high quality credit rating and reviews their credit worthiness on an on-going basis in close co-ordination with its holding 

Company’s Treasury team.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 

2021 on its carrying amounts as disclosed in notes 8, 10, 11, 12 and 13. 

d) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without

incurring unacceptable losses.

The Company maintains adequate liquidity through effective fund/working capital management for settling its liabilities as and 

when they arise.

Cu rren cy expo su re

Ch an ge i n  

cu rren cy 

exch an ge rate

Ef f ect o n  pro f i t 

bef o re tax

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

5% (6)

-5% 6 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

+3% (20)

-3% 20 

USD

USD
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted 

payments:  

Note 46 

Capital risk management 

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves 

attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder 

value. 

The Company maintains sufficient cash and other liquid financial assets to meet the payment of financial liabilities within the due 

dates. 

Note 47 

The Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs.24,567 lakhs. The Company has assessed its liquidity position 

and possible sources of funds. Basis the assessment, the Company may need financial support from the holding Company to 

settle some of its existing liabilities. Hence, its ability to continue as a going concern is dependent on the holding Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern. The holding Company’s ability to continue as going concern is dependent on its ability to 

raise additional funds as required. 

Note 48 

Significant transactions / new developments 

The Hon’ble Supreme Court on October 24, 2019 passed its judgement against the telecom operators on cross appeals against 

the Hon’ble TDSAT judgement dated April 23, 2015 relating to the definition of Adjusted Gross Revenue (‘SC AGR Judgement’). 

The order upheld the levy of interest, penalty and interest on penalty along with a supplementary order directing payment of 

dues to be made within 3 months from the date of the order. A Review Petition filed by the Holding Company and some of the 

telecom operators against the above SC AGR Judgement was dismissed on January 16, 2020. 

Further to the above judgement, there has been separate orders, relating to ISP’s as petitioners holding Unified License (UL) , by 

the Hon’ble TDSAT on October 18, 2019 where Internet Service Providers Association of India (ISPAI) was a party to the order and 

further re-confirmed on June 12, 2020, that revenue earned from Pure Internet Service should be excluded from the calculation 

of AGR for the purpose of calculating license fees. Further to this, as stated in the TDSAT order dated June 12, 2020, the learned 

counsel of Department of Telecom (DoT) agreed of having no objection to disposing off the issue of AGR raised in the relevant 

petitions on the basis of judgment dated October 18, 2019 in view of parity claimed by the petitioners holding UL and others 

holding ISP License. The DOT has since appealed against the TDSAT order to the Hon’ble Supreme Court which is under review. 

P arti cu lars Carryi n g Valu e Less th an  1  year 1  to  5  years >  5  years To tal paymen ts

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

Borrowings and Interest thereon 
(1) 8,933 8,933 -                     -   8,933 

Trade and other payables 
(2) 4,037 4,037 -                     -   4,037 

Other financial liabilities 
(1) & (2) 1,982 1,982 -                     -   1,982 

Lease liabilities 1,454 719 741                30 1,490 

To tal 1 6 ,4 0 6  1 5 ,6 7 1         7 4 1   3 0            1 6 ,4 4 2  

As at  March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

Borrowings and Interest thereon 
(1) 9,335 9,335 -                     -   9,335 

Trade and other payables 
(2) 4,708 4,685 23 -   4,708 

Other financial liabilities 
(1) & (2) 2,193 2,193 -                     -   2,193 

Lease liabilities 1,527 770 874                33 1,677 

To tal 1 7 ,7 6 3  1 6 ,9 8 3         8 9 7   3 3            1 7 ,9 1 3  

1
Interest accrued but not due of Rs. 27 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 10 lakhs ) has been excluded from other financial liabilities and included in

borrowings and interest thereon.

2
Payable for capex expenditure of Rs. 653 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 1,232 lakhs) has been excluded from other financial liabilities and

included in trade and other payables.
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Recently on March 31, 2021, DoT issued amendment to the ISP license and included “Revenue from pure Revenue Services” with 

immediate effect. This amendment has been challenged by one of the ISP licensee before TDSAT vide order dated June 3, 2021. 

TDSAT allowed interim prayer till further orders. Further this amendment was also challenged by other ISP license holders 

subsequently and vide order dated June 10, 2021, TDSAT allowed interim protection to all ISPs. TDSAT also directed DoT to extend 

similar protection to the similarly placed licensee till next date of hearing. However, the Company on prudent basis has made 

additional provision of Rs. 1,277 lakhs (March 31, 2021 – NIL) towards license fees on revenue from Pure Internet Service and 

interest thereon for the FY 21-22  

Further the Company has made provision of Rs.813 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs.702 lakhs) towards license fees demands raised by 

DoT and for the years demands not received on estimation basis. This is resulting in cumulative provision of Rs.5,983 lakhs as on 

March 31, 2022 in this regard. While the provision in the books has been made out of abundant caution, the Company shall 

however continue with the required legal steps in this regard on these demands. 

No te 4 9

Addi ti o n al di sclo su re as per  req u i remen t o f  Sch edu le I I I

Rati o s f o r  th e year  en ded March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2  an d March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

P arti cu lars F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 2

F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 1

% Var i an ce Reaso n  f o r  v ar i an ce

Current Ratio
(1)

0.12 0.16 (28)% Mainly due to decrease in current assets

Debt Equity Ratio
(2)

(3.28) 44.83 (107)% Mainly due to losses during the year

Debt Service Coverage Ratio ('DSCR') 
(3)

(0.31) (0.56) (44)%

Mainly due to losses during the year and 

lower repayments of borrowings

Return on Equity Ratio 
(4)

NA* (30)% NA

Trade Receivables turnover ratio (number of days) 
(5)

3 5 (50)%

Mainly due to decrease in trade 

receivables

Trade Payables turnover ratio 
(6)

3.32 3.21 4%

Net capital turnover ratio 
(7)

(1.00) (0.80) 26%

Mainly due to decrease in revenue from 

operations

Net Profit ratio (%) 
(8)

(19)% 0% (19)%

Return on Capital employed 
(9)

(26)% 7% (477)% Mainly due to losses during the year

* As the Net-worth is negative as on March 31, 2022.

(9) 
Return on Capital employed = [(Profit/(loss) before tax + Finance costs) / (Equity share capital + Other equity + Debt (excluding interest accrued but not due)) ]

(1) 
Current Ratio = [Current assets/Current liabilities (excluding short term borrowings]

(2) 
Debt-Equity Ratio = [Debt (excluding interest accrued but not due)/ Equity]

(3)
DSCR = [Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax + Depreciation & Amortisation expenses (excluding depreciation on ROU assets) + Finance costs (excluding interest

on lease liabilities)] / [Finance costs (excluding interest  on lease liabilities) ]
(4) 

Return on Equity Ratio = [Net Profit/(loss) after tax/ Average Equity]
(5) 

Trade Receivables turnover ratio = [(Average trade receivables/(Revenue from operations)*Number of days during the year]
(6) 

Trade Payables turnover ratio = [Total purchases/Average Trade Payables]
(7) 

Net capital turnover ratio = [Revenue from operations / (Current asset - Current liability (excluding Short term borrowings))]
(8) 

Net profit ratio = [Profit after tax/Revenue from operations]
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(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 50 

Previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year grouping. 
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